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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I wanted to

          3  thank you for your patience, and explain that due to

          4  the circumstances beyond your control, and due to

          5  untoward circumstance, I had to leave this room at a

          6  that time, and I apologize for the inconvenience

          7  that was caused by my absence to you. Now, we are

          8  going to wait a few moments for other Council

          9  members so that we can vote on a piece of

         10  legislation that we must vote on. That should take a

         11  few moments, they should be here soon. So, that will

         12  not be a long wait, that should be just a slight

         13  period of time. I am going to ask your patience, and

         14  if you will, we are seeking those members who are

         15  here and who are still in the building to come back

         16  and vote on that piece of legislation so we can

         17  begin with Medicare Part B.

         18                 We would like to thank all of you who

         19  have given your time, who exercise much strength and

         20  determination by the letters and determination and

         21  persistence in bringing this moment to fruition for

         22  all of us.

         23                 I would like to suggest, if you would

         24  like to, does anyone know where the old Board of

         25  Estimate room is? Has anyone ever been to the old
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          2  Board of Estimate Chambers? Does anybody know where

          3  that room is, besides you and me and five other

          4  people? If you would choose to, there is coffee and

          5  tea, there is also a bagel and some rugola and you

          6  might have that briefly and come right back and then

          7  we shall proceed. One, two, three -- we are awaiting

          8  about two more people and we will start.

          9                 So, if you want to do that, you can

         10  do that.

         11                 We need two more people. And if after

         12  we do that, we will go right into Medicare Part B.

         13  And you may bring your coffee back with you because

         14  I know you won't spill it, everybody here has been

         15  trained.

         16                 (Recess taken.)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you all

         18  for being very patient, we are going to begin.

         19                 We are going to start with the

         20  hearing on Medicare Part B, and we are going to have

         21  the first witness, Zachary Ramsey, Alma Osborne,

         22  Norman Davis.

         23                 Our normal procedure is that we

         24  usually ask the City to testify first, however, my

         25  understanding is that they are going to have a memo
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          2  in opposition and he is going to circulate his good

          3  news and we will make sure that everyone gets

          4  copies, and we are going to ask each of you to

          5  identify yourselves by name and title so that we

          6  will know to whom we are listening.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 Now, just to make sure that we know

          9  what we are facing, we have received from the City

         10  of New York a memorandum in opposition, and this was

         11  from Joshua D. Filler, Director of the City's Office

         12  of Legislative Affairs, and I am sure we are going

         13  to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to make sure that our

         14  witnesses also receive copies of this memorandum.

         15  And we are going to ask that our witnesses first

         16  identify themselves and then we will commence

         17  hearing the testimony of those who are speaking in

         18  favor of the proposed legislation.

         19                 MR. RAMSEY: Good morning. My name is

         20  Zach Ramsey, I am a Deputy Administrator at DC 37.

         21                 MS. OSBORNE: Alma Osborne President

         22  of the Retirees Association of District Council 37.

         23                 MR. DAVIS: Norman O. Davis, Secretary

         24  of District Council 37, Retirees, and also the

         25  Council of Municipal Retirees.
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          2                 MR. SEIDE: I am Elliot Seide, Deputy

          3  Administrator of District Council 37.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you. Would

          5  you please begin your testimony?

          6                 MR. RAMSEY: On behalf of the 125,000

          7  members we represent, and most importantly, on

          8  behalf of our 30,000 retirees, I want to thank

          9  Speaker Peter Vallone and Council Member Mary

         10  Pinkett, and the members of the Government

         11  Operations Committee for the opportunity to comment

         12  on Intro. 580.

         13                 Intro. 580 will finally cause the

         14  City of New York to fully reimburse its retirees for

         15  the cost of Medicare Part B premiums on a permanent

         16  basis.

         17                 This is a commitment that was made to

         18  City retirees over 32 years ago. State employees

         19  already enjoyed this benefit. We have waited long

         20  enough for the City to make good on this promise.

         21                 Our members have sent post cards,

         22  called their Council Members, participated in

         23  rallies, and they are here today to make it

         24  abundantly clear that we expect the City Council to

         25  do what is right by providing City retirees with the
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          2  benefit that is long overdue.

          3                 Our retirees spent their working

          4  lives serving this City. This is a small, but

          5  necessary way to help them make ends meet. As the

          6  premiums continue to increase, the rate of

          7  reimbursement has remained constant and our retirees

          8  are paying more money each year, for some, up to

          9  $300 a year. And while $300 a year may not seem like

         10  a lot of money for some of us. A number of retirees

         11  are forced to choose between putting food on the

         12  table, or purchasing medication.

         13                 These are not the kinds of choices

         14  that these New Yorkers should be forced to make.

         15                 Fortunately, Speaker Vallone has

         16  indicated his support for the bill, and we are

         17  heartened by the Council's apparent willingness to

         18  take action.

         19                 We urge immediate action on this

         20  matter and request the members of this Committee to

         21  vote in favor of Intro. 580.

         22                 Our retirees are promised full

         23  reimbursement, they have earned it, they deserve it,

         24  and in the spirit of the start of the baseball

         25  season, it is time for the City of New York to step
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          2  up to the plate and deliver on behalf of its tired

          3  municipal employees.

          4                 Again, thank you for your support on

          5  this matter.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Who is next?

          7                 Alma.

          8                 MS. OSBORNE: Good morning, everyone.

          9  My name is Alma Osborne. I am President of the

         10  Retirees Association of District Council 37. At

         11  present, I am 89 years old, and I have been

         12  president of the Association for the last nine

         13  years.

         14                 With elections of officers scheduled

         15  in May, I had considered resigning and taking a

         16  secondary rule. We have always been fighting for

         17  full Medicaid Part B reimbursement because it was

         18  promised to us by Mayor Lindsay in 1967. That

         19  promise has not been fulfilled.

         20                 When Speaker Vallone made a

         21  commitment to District Council 37 that there would

         22  be a full reimbursement bill enacted this year,

         23  something said to me, you know, Alma, you should not

         24  resign until this bill is law. Stay in the thick of

         25  the frey until you see the bill in your hand, so
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          2  like an old racehorse, here in the starting bell I

          3  am ready for one more run.

          4                 This time I want to cross the finish

          5  line with the full Medicare Part B reimbursement as

          6  my final prize.

          7                 MS. O. DAVIS: Good morning. My name

          8  is Norman O. Davis. Today I represent the Council's

          9  retiree organizations known by the acronym COMRO. I

         10  am their secretary, in addition to being the

         11  secretary of the Retiree's Association of District

         12  Council 37. It seems that when they found out that I

         13  could read and write in a legible manner, both

         14  organizations said, he is our secretary.

         15                 My president and the Administrator

         16  had made presentations and given facts, so I won't

         17  be redundant and try to go over that. But I am just

         18  going to give you a little about our organization.

         19                 COMRO is an organization that has

         20  been in existence for quite awhile. Upon the demise

         21  of its original founder, it had become dormant, but

         22  not defunct.

         23                 Four years ago, Professor Lawrence

         24  Larry Kaplan, Professor Emeritus of CUNY, decided

         25  that COMRO needed new life. Contacting many of the
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          2  founding members of the organization through his

          3  dedication, belief in his value, he assembled these

          4  original organizations and added others and to this

          5  day it is a formidable advocate for senior and

          6  retiree causes.

          7                 Our organization represents 20

          8  diverse retiree organizations with the collective

          9  membership of 150,000. I will not try and list them

         10  all, but they include, beside the retirees of

         11  District Council 37, police, sanitation, staff

         12  analysts, United Federation of Teachers,

         13  Transportation, and other prominent organizations.

         14                 Medicare Part B has always been one

         15  of their top priorities, along with other retiree

         16  issues.

         17                 We have testified before Mayor

         18  Giuliani and the City Council at prior hearings

         19  asking for passage of a bill that would not only

         20  bring retirees to the level that they were promised,

         21  but also guarantee continued parity with the cost of

         22  living commensurate with inflation.

         23                 If the end of the struggle is in

         24  sight and it is realized, I will wear both

         25  secretarial hats together, if necessary.
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          2                 To the Speaker, to the Council, all I

          3  can say humbly is thank you. May I also wish

          4  everyone a happy holiday.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Just before you move

          7  on, Madam Chair, let me thank you all very much.

          8  It's very important that you make that testimony

          9  part of the record, and I want the record to

         10  indicate that but for Mary Pinkett, the Chairperson

         11  of this Committee who has been fighting for this as

         12  long as I know her, which is at least two decades,

         13  we would not be in the position that we are today to

         14  be able to do a permanent legislation which is what

         15  this legislation will do. So, you don't have to come

         16  back. This would be, whatever your additional costs

         17  would be, the City, as it originally promised a long

         18  time ago, we will pick it up, and that is a great

         19  benefit and a great tribute to the Chairperson of

         20  the Operation Committee who has made this a number

         21  one priority for as long as I know her.

         22                 MR. RAMSEY: Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. SEIDE: Madam Chairwoman, just to

         24  say thank you, you have done a mitzvah for all these

         25  retirees. At Passover, a mitzvah is a beautiful
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          2  thing. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: President of the

          4  United Retired Firefighters Association. Now, this

          5  is a very interesting handwriting. The first name is

          6  John.

          7                 MR. SALLAYZO: Sallayzo.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you so

          9  much, John.

         10                 SPEAKER VALLONE: John tried to come

         11  here as a Council Member, but he is coming here in a

         12  different position.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Anything you

         14  want, John. Feel free.

         15                 MR. SALLAYZO: Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

         16                 Thank you, Mary Pinkett. Good

         17  morning. I would like to thank Chairwoman Mary

         18  Pinkett, the Speaker and members of the City Council

         19  Governmental Operations Committee for giving me the

         20  opportunity to testify before you today.

         21                 1967 when the City first instituted a

         22  policy to save on retiree medical insurance costs,

         23  to enroll in Medicare, Mayor John Lindsay made it

         24  clear his intention that retirees get full

         25  reimbursement for this component of their Medicare
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          2  premium. In fact, until 1988, this policy remained

          3  in effect. At that time, due to budgetary

          4  constraints, the City began to reimburse retirees

          5  less than the Medicare Part B premium.

          6                 I believe this policy should stop.

          7  The City should fully reimburse its retirees for

          8  their Medicare Part B. And one of the most important

          9  benefits that the New York City Retirees receive is

         10  their Medicare coverage. This benefit allows

         11  retirees to get the medical care they need, in an

         12  environment of ever-increasing medical costs.

         13                 Unfortunately, many of these retirees

         14  who live on a fixed budget and find it very

         15  difficult to pay the 30 percent difference between

         16  Medicare Part B at the current rate of $45.50 per

         17  month, and the $32 which is the City reimbursement.

         18  That amounts to $13.50 or $162 a year.

         19                 That might not seem like much money

         20  to many of us, but consider how much most retirees

         21  have and you will see that for many of them it's a

         22  real burden.

         23                 There are currently a total of

         24  240,119 retirees collecting a pension from the five

         25  city pension funds, one-third of them, total of
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          2  79,858, receive less than $12,000 a year from their

          3  pensions. Another third, 85,446, receive between

          4  $12,000 and $25,000 a year.

          5                 For someone receiving less than

          6  $12,000 a year, $162 is a real burden, and it could

          7  force some retirees to decide not to take the

          8  Medicare Part B coverage, which would threaten their

          9  ability to receive full medical coverage.

         10                 We should not put our senior citizens

         11  who have worked very hard for the City in the

         12  position for having to make that choice. And the

         13  City should reimburse retirees at the full rate pro

         14  rated by their Health Care Financing, HCF, of $45.50

         15  per month. The premium is scheduled to increase to

         16  $56.50 by 2002, and the added cost to the City's

         17  budget to Fiscal Year 2000 would 24 million,

         18  increasing to about 48 million, for the fiscal year

         19  2003.

         20                 Medicare Part B reimbursement would

         21  benefit all retirees equally. Nassau and Westchester

         22  Counties currently provide full reimbursement for

         23  the retiree premiums, and we should do no less, and

         24  I thank you very much for today.

         25                 I urge you to support, which you are
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          2  supporting, for swift passage of the bill number

          3  580-A, to bring City Medicare Part B reimbursement

          4  to all the retirees to the full premium allowed

          5  under the federal law.

          6                 It is only fair that we support our

          7  retirees, and you are supporting them, I know that,

          8  who have provided the City with decades of dedicated

          9  service at a time when they needed it most.

         10                 Considering the conditions have never

         11  been better than they are today, the City should not

         12  hesitate, and I thank the City Council, I thank

         13  again Peter Vallone, I thank Mary Pinkett, and all

         14  the Council members for their support over the time

         15  it has finally come, and it has been a hard drive

         16  and I think collectively everyone loves to take

         17  credit for everything, you know, everything that is

         18  on the table, but I think all retirees along with

         19  all Council members, and you, Speaker Peter Vallone,

         20  we would not be here today. And, Mary, like you say,

         21  you led the charge, and, again, the City Council

         22  here, the great City of New York, we would not be

         23  here today. I thank you very much, and, I, too, also

         24  wish you a happy holiday. Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you also
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          2  for your support and your help, and just keep on

          3  plugging away.

          4                 MR. SALLAYZO: Thank you, Mary.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

          6                 MR. SALLAYZO: Thank you, Speaker.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Sandra March. I

          8  wonder what organization she is from.

          9                 Please identify yourselves by name,

         10  title and organization.

         11                 MS. MARCH: Sandra March, United

         12  Federation of Teachers.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Speaker did

         14  not use microphone.)

         15                 Good morning, Councilwoman Pinkett

         16  and members of the Committee and Speaker Vallone.

         17                 I can only say that I know Mary has

         18  been working on this issue for the 18 years that I

         19  have been involved with our retirees, and, so,

         20  before I even begin my testimony, Mary, we thank you

         21  from the bottom of our hearts, because Mary was

         22  always the person that those of us working with the

         23  hard-working retirees of this City went to whenever

         24  we knew it was time to try to increase the Medicare

         25  Part B reimbursement, since it had not been at the
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          2  100 percent rate since 1988.

          3                 So, let me begin by saying, as I told

          4  you before, my name is Sandra March, and I am here

          5  today representing Randi Weingarten, President of

          6  the United Federation of Teachers.

          7                 On behalf of our members, I want to

          8  state for the record how important the Council has

          9  been over the longest period of time in preserving

         10  and improving our retiree benefits. The Council has

         11  never forgotten New York City's retired educators,

         12  as they have ever forgotten the rest of the City's

         13  retired workforce.

         14                 I would like to thank the Chair of

         15  the Committee for always being in the forefront of

         16  this issue. We especially thank Speaker Vallone for

         17  bringing this bill before the Council, and for

         18  supporting our City's retirees.

         19                 Our 35,000 members of the Retired

         20  Teachers Chapter ask that the Committee approve this

         21  legislation, because it is the fair thing to do.

         22                 New York City Retirees have been hard

         23  hit with the increased cost of health insurance,

         24  just as all retirees and even all working people

         25  have been hit in this country.
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          2                 We know that the City presently

          3  reimburses $32 of the Medicare reimbursement, and we

          4  know that in 2000 retirees pay $45.50 and in 2001,

          5  which we are presently in, they are paying $50.

          6  Out-of-pocket expenses for retirees in 2000 came to

          7  a total of $162 a year. Out-of-pocket expenses in

          8  2001 will be $216.

          9                 I think for all of us who spend time

         10  in the supermarkets shopping, and I know even all of

         11  the men, I don't mean to be a sexist sitting in this

         12  room, spend time in the supermarkets, and we know

         13  how prices have increased, and it really is not a

         14  fairy tale when we say that there are those retirees

         15  who are in the group of income that was referred to

         16  before do make the choice between whether they are

         17  going to buy chicken, not fillet mingnon, but

         18  whether they are going to buy chicken or whether

         19  they are going to buy medication that they need,

         20  because their drug plan may have run out because of

         21  a medication that they must take.

         22                 Mayors have historically opposed the

         23  increase in Medicare Part B because they have always

         24  said the City couldn't afford it.

         25                 The City Council has historically
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          2  found it fit to increase the reimbursement over

          3  Mayors' objections. The City Council last did this

          4  in 1996. Surely a City that is experiencing economic

          5  resurgence with billion dollar surpluses, the Mayor

          6  cannot now make such an argument.

          7                 In fact, New York State, as we know,

          8  reimburses its public employees fully and has always

          9  reimbursed its retirees fully for the cost of

         10  Medicare Part B, it's time for New York City to do

         11  the same, and we know that the Council will do this

         12  when they enact Intro. 580.

         13                 On behalf of the United Federation of

         14  Teachers and its 140,000 members, we urge that this

         15  Committee vote in favor of Intro. 580, therefore

         16  increasing the reimbursement of Medicare Part B to

         17  the full amount that each retiree pays and that the

         18  entire Council be given the opportunity to act on

         19  it.

         20                 We know that the Council will vote

         21  positively on this issue and we thank you in advance

         22  for doing so.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And I just

         24  wanted to add to Sandy's thanks to Speaker Vallone

         25  and Chairwoman Pinkett and the entire Committee, for
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          2  the active, as well as retiree members, as a third

          3  generation civil servant and City employee, you have

          4  always stood for the dignity of retirees and do so

          5  now, so thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We thank you.

          7                 I know this is a time that many of

          8  you may not be here until the end, because there is

          9  collective bargaining going on, and there are

         10  elections or nominations going on and that's why

         11  Alma Osborne had to leave and many of her members

         12  had to leave. And, so, in the event that you leave,

         13  I hope you don't, I wanted to acknowledge the fact

         14  that Alma Osborne, who, of course, has a lot of free

         15  time at age 89, was very anxious to return to the

         16  District Council because there is a special

         17  nomination and a meeting that had already been

         18  scheduled for today, and she could not change that

         19  meeting on such short notice.

         20                 But this Committee would like to also

         21  acknowledge the work that you have done, and the

         22  fact that you don't allow us to go to sleep on your

         23  issues, and I think it is very, very important that

         24  the retirees keep us and keep the City awake to

         25  issues that are very important.
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          2                 When you said a third generation

          3  civil servant, that's a marvelous, marvelous,

          4  marvelous legacy. I would hope that we can continue

          5  to see that. We have to rebuild that issue. There

          6  used to be a time when you could say that with

          7  assurance, I would like to know that that is going

          8  to happen again. Because that is what made New York

          9  City great, when people could have a job in this

         10  City and say, you know, it's such a great place to

         11  be educated in New York City. It's a wonderful place

         12  to have a job in New York City, it's such a great

         13  place with a future, go down and take a test for a

         14  job in New York City.

         15                 And, so, we, too, also want to

         16  express to you our thanks, our appreciation for what

         17  you have done for this City, and I would like to say

         18  that this City owes you a debt, because if it were

         19  not for you when President Ford said drop dead to

         20  the City of New York, it was your money that saved

         21  this City. It was your money that made a difference

         22  in this City.

         23                 Sometimes people forget and we have

         24  to remind them who made the difference. So, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 Now, then, Donald Faeth. Is it

          3  F-a-e-t-h? Is that the way it is spelled? Okay.

          4  Local 2507.

          5                 Donald may have had to leave.

          6                 Irwin Yellowitz.

          7                 MR. YELLOWITZ: Yes, I am Irwin

          8  Yellowitz.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Excuse me for

         10  the mispronunciation, Yellowtiz.

         11                 MR. YELLOWITZ: Yes, Yellowitz. Just

         12  like the color.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         14                 MR. YELLOWITZ: I am the Chairman of

         15  the Retirees Chapter of the Professional Staff

         16  Congress CUNY, the union that represents the faculty

         17  and staff of the City University.

         18                 Our Retirees Chapter is the largest

         19  in the union, which says something about the age

         20  distribution in New York City over the last few

         21  decades. We are over 2,100 members, and along with

         22  the leadership of the Professional Staff Congress,

         23  President Barbara Bowen and the other officers, I

         24  would also like to commend the efforts of Chairwoman

         25  Mary Pinkett, the other members of the Committee,
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          2  and of course, Speaker Peter Vallone for bringing

          3  this issue of the reimbursement Part B Medicare

          4  Premium to the attention of the City Council as a

          5  whole and the general public.

          6                 Full reimbursement would honor a

          7  pledge that was made back in 1968 and that has

          8  affected City employees since that time, especially

          9  those who have retired on small pensions. In the

         10  Year 2000, $162 was what it cost each retiree to

         11  make up the difference between what is promised and

         12  what is actually in effect, and that would go up

         13  this year without action by the Council.

         14                 And we should also consider the

         15  cumulative effect in the year since 1989, New York

         16  City's failure to continue full reimbursement has

         17  cost a retiree $1,288, which is not an

         18  inconsiderable sum for many retirees who live on a

         19  tight budget, and this continuing law should end

         20  immediately.

         21                 In the City University we have many

         22  retirees who retired many years ago, and their

         23  pensions are fixed and modest in amount, and

         24  restoration with full reimbursement would be an

         25  important aid to each one of these persons.
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          2                 There is need for this. In order to

          3  provide equity with other government bodies, New

          4  York State provides 100 percent reimbursement, and

          5  there is no reason why New York City with workers

          6  who are situated so similarly, should not do the

          7  same.

          8                 I would like to stress that what all

          9  of the Speakers today have called for is the

         10  restoration of full reimbursement. From 1968 to 1989

         11  New York City did make full payment, it cut back

         12  because of financial difficulties, but during the

         13  '90s when the City's finances improved, ironically

         14  the percentage of the Medicare Part B premium that

         15  was made by this City declined.

         16                 In 1990, '91 and '92, for example, it

         17  was 98 percent, 93 percent and 91 percent paid by

         18  the City, and as we all know, that has now shrunken

         19  to 70 percent.

         20                 There is no financial reason for the

         21  City to continue to break its agreement, and

         22  government no less than any citizen should honor its

         23  commitments.

         24                 So, we would like to call, as other

         25  speakers, for the passage of this bill, and thank
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          2  the members of the Council for their attention and

          3  their support.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Eugene Loewy.

          8                 MR. LOEWY: I would like to thank you,

          9  Mary Pinkett, and also Peter Vallone, and also

         10  members of the City Council for all past favors. You

         11  have been very supportive in our quest for

         12  supplementation, pension improvements and also for

         13  our permanent COLA which went into effect last year,

         14  and for that we are very grateful and thankful.

         15                 I might also express my thank you for

         16  future benefits.

         17                 I come before you representing 6,000

         18  retired NYPD police officers of all ranks, and in

         19  addition to 3,000 members distributed around the

         20  country for our national, and also for the thousands

         21  of retired police officers who performed so well for

         22  the City during their active duty days. The history

         23  of Medicare in the New York City rebate policy dates

         24  back to the Lindsay Administration, and it was his

         25  intention that part of the savings experienced by
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          2  the City when the retiree enrolled in Medicare be

          3  shared with the retiree, it was only in the

          4  mid-seventies when our great City faced a financial

          5  crisis that the increasing of reimbursements failed

          6  to keep pace with the monthly cost to the

          7  subscribers.

          8                 In your annual meetings, the amounts

          9  have been gradually increased, but have failed to

         10  keep up with the deductions.

         11                 In the summer of 1995, the Mayor

         12  called an emergency meeting here in City Hall.  On

         13  the threat of layoffs and cutbacks, the unions

         14  agreed to Medicare recipients suffering a $100

         15  annual deductible for treatment or care, and a $200

         16  hospital admissions deduction with a $500 annual

         17  cap.

         18                 These savings were borne solely by

         19  the Medicare retirees and saved the City that year

         20  $600 million.

         21                 These deductibles did not exist

         22  before the 1995 agreement for Medicare people and

         23  were placed on them, although financially they were

         24  our senior members and the least able to afford it.

         25                 Last, but not least, the practice
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          2  elsewhere in this State is full reimbursement. Why

          3  should our New York City retirees not enjoy the same

          4  benefit but be punished for having chosen service

          5  with the City?

          6                 Therefore, I urge you all to vote in

          7  favor of permanent full Medicare reimbursement, and

          8  I might add that Sergeant Bernie Pounds from the

          9  Active Police Department Sergeants Association is

         10  here to show his presence and support for this

         11  legislation, and I thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

         13  your presence and your support as well. And thank

         14  you for the active support. I have seen him

         15  struggling to hold onto himself during this long

         16  period of time. Thank you for your presence.

         17                 Frank Martinez.

         18                 MR. MARTINEZ: Good morning. Is it

         19  still morning?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: It is still

         21  morning.

         22                 MR. MARTINEZ: I have got one minute.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         24                 MR. MARTINEZ: I want to thank Council

         25  President Mary Pinkett and the rest of the
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          2  Committee, the Council, thank you for giving me this

          3  opportunity to express myself.

          4                 My name is Frank Martinez. I am a

          5  retired New York City firefighter, and today I am

          6  here representing not only my old bodies, but COMRO,

          7  which is the Council of Municipal Retirees. And

          8  COMRO represents over 150,000 retirees. COMRO fully

          9  supports full reimbursement for Medicare Part B

         10  premium.

         11                 I am not here to give you a long,

         12  drawn out statement, a lot of eloquent speakers came

         13  before me, I just want to get to the point.

         14                 This was a promise made to retirees

         15  by City Government, when City Government was in

         16  crisis. All we ask is that we keep your promise. For

         17  many retirees, this is a big chunk of their pension,

         18  please do not deny them again. They need it.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Thank you. Thank you.

         23                 Is there anyone here who wanted to

         24  testify, who was not called?

         25                 Did you put in a slip?
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          2                 MR. EWALD: No, I didn't, but I would

          3  like to speak.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right, would

          5  you see the Sergeant-At-Arms, please, and complete

          6  the slip.

          7                 I presume then with that testimony

          8  that would be the final person, the final witness.

          9                 Would you please identify yourself by

         10  name, title and organization.

         11                 MS. EWALD: Yes. I am Fred Ewald, I am

         12  the Managerial Employees Association representative

         13  to COMRO.

         14                 My wife and I are Medicare Part B

         15  participants. We save the City several thousand

         16  dollars a year, each of us. Every Medicare Part B

         17  participant has 80 percent of their health insurance

         18  paid by the government through the Medicare Part B

         19  membership. So, the City only then has to pay

         20  one-fifth of their health insurance. So, simply put,

         21  we are giving the City voluntarily, since we are not

         22  required to join Medicare Part B, no one has to join

         23  it, although there are penalties if you join late,

         24  so we are giving the City a savings of $6,000 and we

         25  are just asking to get back that $162 that each of
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          2  us have been paying.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You are welcome.

          5  Thank you for your testimony.

          6                 Is there anyone who has wished to

          7  testify and hasn't been given an opportunity to

          8  testify? That means at this particular time the

          9  hearing is closed for testimony. We are waiting for

         10  the Clerk and for one Council Member and we are

         11  going to vote on Medicare Part B. You are welcome to

         12  wait for that vote, it is going to be done in the

         13  open. We are not going to do it abra cadabra.

         14                 For the benefit of the Committee

         15  members, we are going to take two votes. The first

         16  one will be on Intro. 879, which will be the

         17  override for the 4 and 1, and the question will be,

         18  shall the Committee receive the Mayor's veto

         19  message? Shall Intro. No. 879 pass the objections of

         20  the Mayor, notwithstanding?

         21                 Everyone understands the question?

         22                 And the second vote will be 580-A,

         23  that will be Medicare Part B, there will be no

         24  discussion on Intro. 879, it's a simple override.

         25                 The reason for our waiting, of
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          2  course, is because we want to do nothing that would

          3  be incorrect legally, in terms of how we conduct

          4  this particular business of the legislation, and we

          5  meet the requirements of the law.

          6                 The first one shall require an

          7  individual answer, the second one, Intro. No. 879,

          8  that's the objection of the Mayor, notwithstanding,

          9  that will be a separate question and that will

         10  require a separate answer. We will receive each one

         11  of those separately and the final one will be Intro.

         12  580-A.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Watkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Aye, and aye

         17  on Intro. 879.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Carrion.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Madam Chair,

         20  and my colleagues, thank you for your patience. I

         21  vote aye on both.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Was there

         23  something you said before that, before the aye?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes, I said

         25  thank you for your patience.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Oh. Go ahead,

          3  continue, please.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I just wanted to

          6  have one brief opportunity to explain my vote, since

          7  I was not offered the opportunity to thank those

          8  that came on Intro. 580, the Medicare Part B.

          9                 I appreciated the testimony, but I

         10  think more importantly, I, and I know thousands of

         11  people appreciate the work that they did as City

         12  employees to sustain us, and I think that this is

         13  overdue and certainly just, so I vote aye on all.

         14                 I thought you said we could vote on

         15  all three at the same time? I misunderstood you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: No, we are going

         17  to vote on the first two.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I won't

         19  take back what I said, but I will vote aye on all.

         20  When you have been the one who has been here all

         21  day, you sort of get dazed by the whole thing. So,

         22  thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: That's

         24  understood.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I get points for
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          2  that, don't I, Council Member Carrion?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          5                 Aye on the first two.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fiala.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

          9  five in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         10  abstentions, item 1089 is received and filed; Intro.

         11  879 is adopted, readopted. Please sign the reports.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. Now,

         13  Intro. 580-A is now to be voted on. I said each of

         14  them would be voted on individually, but you had to

         15  vote on the two I gave you the first time. But I did

         16  not give you at the time Intro. 580-A. I did not

         17  give you the Intro. Number at that time.

         18                 Now then, anyone may make any

         19  statement that they choose to make in reference to

         20  Medicare Part B at that time. Most of us refrain

         21  from making comments because of the fact that we

         22  were trying to move them along because they had

         23  waited as you had for such a long time and many of

         24  them had to leave.

         25                 So, we will now take the vote on
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          2  Intro. 580-A.

          3                 Please call the roll.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Despite the

          6  warfare that seems to be, it is not a warfare, it is

          7  just I think that for many of us, we are very happy

          8  to see this occur. We know that for the retirees,

          9  this is something that they have earned and should

         10  have received a long time ago, and we are just happy

         11  that this has happened.

         12                 We think they deserve far more in

         13  many other aspects of life, but that this Council

         14  and this Committee could be instrumental in making

         15  right or wrong is to us I think a very important

         16  aspect of what we do as Council members, and I think

         17  quite often when people say, well, what does the

         18  Council -- they ask "what does the Council do?"

         19  Quite often the Council does attempt to rectify the

         20  wrongs that are done in the name of the City by the

         21  City to its citizens, and they do it with the

         22  righteous belief or statement that they save the

         23  City money, that it does make a difference to the

         24  people of this City, that they are cost conscious,

         25  that they are looking out for the budget of the City
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          2  of New York, at the same time, they will give

          3  dollars to people who have dollars, and they will

          4  willingly build a stadium, and will not hold the

          5  people the people they build the stadium for

          6  responsible, but the people who build the City they

          7  tend to forget about. And, so, this is our effort to

          8  say that what has been done was wrong, and what we

          9  are trying to do is make right that wrong, and we

         10  are glad we had the opportunity to be a part of

         11  making right a wrong. I vote aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Watkins.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you.

         14                 Madam Chair, may I be excused to

         15  explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Yes, you may.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I am really

         18  pleased to be one of the prime sponsors for this

         19  bill. I represent a district where many city

         20  retirees reside, and many of them have asked me to

         21  please support this bill, and to have the City

         22  government keep its promise.

         23                 I receive telephone calls, I receive

         24  mail, but most of all, I have received the

         25  admonishment of my mom, who retired from New York
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          2  City government 27 years ago, and she says to me

          3  periodically, as she keeps up with her retirees

          4  newsletters and papers, remind the City and your

          5  colleagues they promised us that they were going to

          6  pay for the full reimbursement for Medicare Part B,

          7  and we are still waiting.

          8                 So, I am extremely pleased on behalf

          9  of my many constituents who are retired City

         10  workers, and particularly my mom, to vote aye on

         11  this bill.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Carrion.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Madam Chair,

         14  may I please be excused to explain my vote?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You may.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you.

         17                 First, let me thank you for your

         18  leadership on this and all of those folks from the

         19  staff who have been working around this, and

         20  certainly the folks who have been advocating for

         21  this in the labor community.

         22                 I had asked when we had a hearing the

         23  last time to be included as a prime sponsor, and I

         24  am not sure that it was an oversight that my name

         25  doesn't appear here, because those of you who know
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          2  me and know where I stand know that I have been very

          3  clear about this.

          4                 This City was built on the backs of

          5  workers, and the City's workforce has made a promise

          6  to its City to dedicate the prime years of their

          7  life to helping to create a better city, whether it

          8  is patching people up when they are hurt in the

          9  street, whether it is working in schools and

         10  hospitals, wherever, wherever they are, they

         11  dedicated their lives to ensuring that we build a

         12  better city that is a fairer city and that is a city

         13  that facilitates success for all of us. And, so, it

         14  is only appropriate that we keep our promise to that

         15  wonderful workforce, and I think it is the right

         16  thing to do. So, I vote yes.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fiala.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I am a proud

         23  co-sponsor and I commend you, Madam Chair, for your

         24  leadership on this issue, as well as Speaker

         25  Vallone. This is a good day for retirees and we have
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          2  lived up to a longstanding commitment. I vote aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

          5  five in the affirmative, none in the negative, with

          6  no abstentions, Intro. 580-A is adopted. Please sign

          7  the reports.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

          9                 This bill should go to the full

         10  Council on the 25th of April, if all goes well.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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